PLANNING COMMISSION

Willows
P | annin g Comm is SiO n e gl

Candis Woods, Commissioner
Peggy White, Commissioner

R eg u | a r M eeti n g Dana Owens, Commissioner

CITY PLANNER
Karen Mantele

April 17,2019
MINUTE CLERK

Willows City Hall "~ Maria Ehorn
201 North Lassen Street 7:00 p.m.

Willows, CA 95988 h_

(530) 934-7041

1. CALLTO ORDER - 7:00 p.m.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLLCALL

4. AGENDA REVIEW (Requested Changes by Commissioners or Staff?)

5. PUBLIC COMMENT

Members of the public wishing to address the Commission on any item(s) not on the agenda may do so at this time when recognized by the Chair;
however, no formal action will be taken unless a majority consensus of the Commission directs staff to place the item on a future agenda. Public is
advised to limit discussion to one presentation per individual. While not required, please state your name and address for the record. (Oral
communications will be limited to three minutes)

6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Minutes of Planning Commission meeting held on and March 20, 2019

7. NEW BUSINESS/Public Hearing(s)

(a) Use Permit/Home Occupation (File#UP-19-02) Applicant/Property Owner: Joan Costaras/Plaza de las
Americas Rancho Square LLC/235 N. Plumas Street; APN002-093-003/R-1 (Low Density Residential) zone/
Low Density Land Use Designation/ Use Permit to allow Home Occupation within an existing structure

Comments from the public are welcome. The Chair will allow an opportunity for comments related to Public Hearings and each action item on the
agenda. Please limit comments to three minutes per topic, and one comment per person per topic. Once comments conclude, please allow the
Commission the opportunity to continue its consideration of the item without interruption.

8. COMMISSION COMMENTARY
9. ADJOURNMENT

CERTIFICATION: Pursuant to Government Code § 54954.2 (a), the agenda for this meeting was properly posted on or before April
12, 2019.

A complete agenda packet, including staff reports and back-up information, is available for public inspection during normal work hours at City Hall or the Willows
Public Library at 201 North Lassen Street in Willows or on the City’s website at www.cityofwillows.ora.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Willows will make available to members of the public any special assistance necessary to participate
in this meeting. The public should contact the City Clerk’s office 934-7041 to make such a request. Notification 72 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to
make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting.

The City of Willows is an Equal Opportunity Provider

Pagelofl
Planning Commission



SUMMARY MINUTES OF THE WILLOWS PLANNING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING HELD MARCH 20, 2019

Meeting audio is available at the City of Willows website. This is not a live feature. Audio recordings are posted the succeeding business day following the scheduled

Planning Commission Meeting.
Please visit www.cityofwilllows.org for free PodBean recordings.

1. Call to Order: 7:00 p.m.

2.

3.

WILLOWS PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES — MARCH 20, 2019

Pledge of Allegiance: Commissioner Griffith led the pledge of allegiance.

Roll Call:

Staff:

Karen Mantele, Planner; Maria Ehorn, Minute Clerk
Commissioners:

PRESENT: Griffith, Hansen, Woods, White, Owen
ABSENT:

Agenda Review: Chair Griffith asked if there were any changes to the agenda by staff or Commissioners. Staff and
Commission had no changes to the agenda.

Public Comment: Chair Griffith introduced the item. Gary Evans was in attendance and gave a brief update on the
601 N Tehama Street project. A brief exchange was had.

Approval of Minutes: Approval of minutes of the regular Planning Commission meeting(s) held on January 16, 2019
{Corrected) and February 20, 2019.

Action:

Motion: Vice Chair Hansen/Second: Commissioner White
Moved to approve the minutes of the January 16, 2019 meeting.
The motion passed unanimously 5/0 by the following voice vote:
AYES: Griffith, Hansen, Woods, White, Owen

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTENTION:

Action:

Motion: Commissioner Woods/Second: Vice Chair Hansen
Moved to approve the minutes of the February 20, 2019 meeting.
The motion passed unanimously 5/0 by the following voice vote:
AYES: Griffith, Hansen, Woods, White, Owen

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTENTION:

NEW BUSINESS/PUBLIC HEARING(S):

a. General Plan Annual Progress Report / A review and discussion regarding the City of Willows General Plan
Year End Review for period from January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018.

Chair Griffith introduced the item. Ms. Mantele presented the staff report. A question and answer session was
had between Commission and Staff.

Chair Griffith asked if there were any comments from the public. No comments were made.



Action:

Consensus: Consensus of Commission

Consensus of the Commission to forward the report with any amendments to the City Council, and thereafter direct

staff to send the report to the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research, and the State Department of Housing and

Community Development, as required by Government Code Section 65400(b).

Consensus was unanimous 5/0

b. Design Review (File#DR-19-03) Applicant/Owner: Gary Evans/same/Site 126-132 W. Sycamore Street; APN:
003-051-007/CC (Central Commercial) zone/ General Commercial Land Use Designation/ /Design Review for
exterior facade improvements to an existing commercial building.

Chair Griffith introduced the item. Ms. Mantele presented the staff report. A discussion was had between the
Commission and Staff. Mr. Evans was in the audience and spoke regarding the above item.

Chair Griffith opened the public hearing at 7:36 p.m.

Hearing no comments, Chair Griffith closed the public hearing at 7:36 pm.

Action:

Motion: Commissioner Woods/Second: Commissioner White

Moved by motion to approve the next resolution in line entitled, a resolution of the Planning Commission of the City
of Willows granting design review approval (File# DR-19-03) to Gary Evans to make exterior facade improvements to
an existing commercial building for property located at 126-132 W. Sycamore Street Assessors Parcel Number 003-
051-007.

The motion passed unanimously 5/0 by the following voice vote:
AYES: White, Woods, Hansen, Griffith, Owen
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTENTION:
8. COMMISSION COMMENTARY:
a. Commissioners gave reports on activities and various meetings they attended.

b. Ms. Mantele gave brief update/status of upcoming and ongoing projects.
C. Ms. Mantele stated the next scheduled Planning Commission meeting will be April 17, 2019.
ADJOURNMENT: 7:54 p.m.

BOB GRIFFITH — Chair

Maria Ehorn — Minute Clerk

WILLOWS PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES — MARCH 20, 2019 2

— = — - - — = z = == > = —



Item 7a

Willows Planning Commission Agenda Report: April 17, 2019

Project: Use Permit/Home Occupation (#UP-19-02)

Sisters of the Valley Gaia’s Hope Business
Applicant/Owner: Joan Costaras /Plaza de las Americas Rancho Square LLC
Project Location: 235 N. Plumas Street, Willows, CA
Parcel No: 002-093-003
General Plan R-1 (Single Family Residential)
Zone: Low Density Residential (LDR)

This matter is before the Planning Commission pursuant to Section 18.110.070 and 18.135 of the
City’s Municipal Code.

Project Description:

The applicant Joan Costaras, has submitted a Use Permit/Home Occupation application to allow use
of an existing residential structure on the subject property, to establish a home occupation business
to produce CBD/Hemp based topical salves and CBD/Hemp base oil infused with essential oil
products. A portion of the upper floor of the two-story structure will be used for the business
operation. All sales for the products will be conducted through a retail and wholesale website,
outreach and delivery to local communities, and business relationships with local stores. No
customers will come to the site. There are plans to rent a store front in the future.

Zoning

The subject property is located within the R-1 zoning district. Home Occupations as defined in the
Municipal Code means “an accessory use of a nonresidential nature which is performed within a
legal structure on the lot, by an occupant of the dwelling unit, and which is clearly incidental and
secondary to the residential use of the property and subject to the Home Occupations regulations”
and are subject to first securing Use Permit approval from the Planning Commission.

There are regulations that must be adhered to regarding allowing Home Occupations. The
regulations are that:

(1) it must be confined within a legal structure and occupy not more than 25% floor space of a
dwelling or 50 percent of that of an accessory building,

(2) involves no sale of merchandise other than that produced on the premises or directly related to
and incidental to the services offered,

(3) is carried out by the member of the family occupying the dwelling with no employees,

(4) produces no evidence of its existence beyond the premises, (5) permits a two square foot sign,
(5) does not generate pedestrian or vehicular traffic beyond the normal neighborhood use, and
(6) meets the requirements of the chief building inspector and fire district.

These regulations will be incorporated into the conditions of approval attached to the resolution.

Analysis:
A floor plan was submitted with the application which indicates the business will operate out of a
portion of the second floor of the two-story structure, as depicted on the attached floor plan layout.

Page 1 of 10  Sisters of the Valley Home Occupation UP
Planning Commission April 17,2019



This space equates to approximately 1/3 of the 1,500 SF second story of the residence, which area
complies with the regulations of a Home Occupation.

The code allows the applicant one sign (two square feet in area) pertaining directly to the home
occupation. The applicant has not submitted a sign plan at this time.

Environmental Review

The project has been reviewed pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) for
significant environmental impacts to the environment and qualifies as a Categorical Exemption,
under Section 15301, Class 1, Existing Facilities.

Findings
Per Section 18.135.050, the Planning Commission may grant a Use Permit if only on the basis of
the application, investigation, and evidence submitted that the following three findings can be made:

L That the use is consistent with the purposes of the district in which the site is
located.
2. That the proposed location of the use and the conditions under which it may be

operated or maintained will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, or
welfare or materially injurious to properties or improvements in the vicinity.
3. That the proposed use is in conformance with the General Plan.

Notice of the proposed use permit/home occupation application and public hearing was posted in a
local newspaper and property owners within 400 feet of the subject site were sent notice per WMC
Section 18.135.030.

The project was reviewed internally by the Fire department and County Environmental Health for
comments/conditions which attached proposed conditions of approval reflect those comments.

Staff Recommendation:

Adopt the attached resolution approving a Home Occupation/Use Permit (file # UP-19-02) for Joan
Costaras to establish a Home Occupation (a.k.a. Sisters of the Valley Gaia’s Hope) located at 235
N. Plumas Street to produce CBD/Hemp based topical salves and CBD/Hemp base oil infused with
essential oil products, subject to the attached conditions of approval.

Planning Commission Options:
1) Approve the Home Occupation/Use Permit with Findings as presented in the Resolution
2) Deny the Home Occupation/Use Permit with Findings

Attachments:
1. Draft Resolution
2. Conditions of Approval
3. Applicants Project Description
4, APN map
5. Upper story floor plan

Page 2 of 10 Sisters of the Valley Home Occupation UP
Planning Commission April 17,2019



Submi

itted by:

Kargn Mantele
Principal Planner

Appeal from any decision of the Planning Commission may be made in writing to the City Clerk
within ten (10) days from the date of the Commission’s action.

Page 3 of 10 Sisters of the Valley Home Occupation UP
Planning Commission April 17, 2019



PC RESOLUTION NO. -2019

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
WILLOWS APPROVING A USE PERMIT (FILE # UP-19-02) FOR JOAN
COSTARAS TO ALLOW ESTABLISHEMENT OF A HOME OCCUPATION
BUSINESS (AKA SISTERS OF THE VALLEY GAIA’S HOPE) WITHIN AN
EXISTING STRUCTURE FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 235 N PLUMAS
STREET ASSESSORS PARCEL NUMBER 002-093-003

WHEREAS, the applicant, Joan Costaras, has submitted a Use Permit/Home Occupation
application to request the use of an existing residential structure to establish CBD/Hemp based
topical salves and CBD/Hemp base oil infused business at property located at 235 N. Plumas Street,
and

WHEREAS, City of Willows Municipal Code Section 18.110.070 states a home occupation
shall be permitted in any legal structure on a lot which is clearly incidental and secondary to the
residential use of the property upon first securing Use Permit approval from the Planning
Commission, and

WHEREAS, notices of the Planning Commission meeting held on April 17, 2019 were
published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City in accordance with law, and mailing to
property owners within 400 feet were sent; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission did, on April 17, 2019, hold a public hearing to
consider all public oral and written comments, letters and documents, staff reports, and all other
documents and evidence which are a part of the Record; and,

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission finds that the proposal is considered exempt from
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15301, Class 1 Existing
Facilities, and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 18.135.050 of the Municipal Code, the following findings
are made:
1) That the use is consistent with the purposes of the district in which the site is located.
A Home Occupation is allowed in any legal structure on a lot which is clearly
incidental and secondary to the residential use of the property with Planning Commission
approval.

2) That the proposed location of the use and the conditions under which it may be operated
or maintained will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare or materially
injurious to properties or improvements in the vicinity.

The conditions of approval will ensure that the Home Occupation will not be
detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare or materially injurious to properties.

3) That the proposed use is in conformance with the General Plan.

Page 4 of 10 Sisters of the Valley Home Occupation UP
Planning Commission April 17,2019



The use of a legal accessory structure for a Home Occupation is in conformance
with the General Plan.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission of the City of
Willows does hereby find that the request to allow use of a legal residential structure for a
CBD/Hemp based topical salves and CBD/Hemp base oil infused Home Occupation business, is
consistent with the General Plan, and the City of Willows Municipal Code; and hereby approve Use
Permit (file # UP-19-02), subject to the attached conditions set forth in Attachment 2; and,

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted at a regular
meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Willows on Wednesday, the 17 day of April
2019, by the following vote, to wit:

AYES
NOES
ABSTAIN
ABSENT

APPROVED:
Robert Griffith, Chairperson

ATTEST:

Maria Ehorn, Recording Secretary

Page 5 of 10 Sisters of the Valley Home Occupation UP
Planning Commission April 17, 2019



ATTACHMENT 2

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
FOR

SISTERS OF THE VALLEY GAIA’S HOPE HOME OCCUPATION/USE PERMIT

235 N Plumas Street/APN: 002-093-003

Adopted by Planning Commission , 2019

GENERAL

1.

10.

11.

That the applicant/developer shall enter into a Pass Through Agreement with the City of
Willows to pay the cost of all planning review, plan checking and field inspection of this
development.

Approval is granted to establish a Home Occupation business to produce CBD/Hemp
salve and infused oils within an existing legal accessory structure at property located at
235 N. Plumas Street.

If the use is not made on the project subject to the permit within one (1) year after the
date of granting the permit, then without further action, the use permit shall be null and
void and such use shall not be made of the property except upon the granting of a new
use permit.

This Home Occupation/Use Permit is void one (1) year after the use permitted by such
permit is discontinued.

All plans for additional uses, which are not covered by this review, shall be submitted to
the City Manager/Planning Commission for review and approval prior to establishment
of use.

The approval of this project shall be subject to the latest adopted Ordinances,
Resolutions, Policies and fees of the City of Willows.

The applicant shall obtain a Business License from the Finance Department of the City
of Willows for the business prior to operation.

There shall be no sale of merchandise other than that produced on the premises or
directly related to and incidental to the product sold.

The Home Occupation business shall be carried out by the member of the family
occupying the dwelling with no employees.

The Home Occupation business shall produces no evidence of its existence beyond the
premises.

The Home Occupation business shall not generate pedestrian or vehicular traffic beyond
the normal neighborhood use.

Page 6 of 10 Sisters of the Valley Home Occupation UP
Planning Commission April 17,2019



12.  The Home Occupation business shall meet the requirements of the Chief building
inspector and Fire district.

13.  In any case where the conditions of granting the Home Occupation have not been or are
not complied with, the Planning Commission shall give notice to the permittee of
intention to revoke such permit and shall give notice ten days prior to a hearing thereon.

14.  Per the State Bureau of Cannabis Control, the business is required to obtain a State
commercial cannabis license dependent on the specifics of the planned operations. A
copy of the license shall be provided to the City.

FIRE DEPARTMENT
15.  Applicant shall contact the Fire Prevention Officer for an inspection prior to establishing

the business.

COUNTY OF GLENN ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH DEPARTMENT

16.

17.

The Department recommends approval of the business.

The Department stated that CBD/CBD oil are not considered generally recognized as
safe and are not approved for use a as food, food additive, or dietary supplement. Any
sale of food products will require permits from the County Department and/or California
Department of Public Health.

Page 7 of 10  Sisters of the Valley Home Occupation UP
Planning Commission April 17, 2019



ATTACHMENT 3
APPLICANT PROJECT DESCRIPTION

SivrrpafeYaLipy
Ehwinnis [T AL

Date: 41119

CUD Sulve Baleh Process- Siater at tie Yalley Gaia's HOPE

235 M. Plumas 5t
YWillnws, CA 95)RY

Ingredients far che produsk arderen anl'ne ar purchesed thrgugl [ogal s Loies. T il will be
created in owr upstrirs kitchen and stared an-site along with all Ingredlents, matesial; 2nd
equipment as show in our sche matic of the property.
All sakes for the product will be conducted as Folows:

s Online thraugh a rvetail and whaolesale webslte — under constraction

=  Qutreach and Delivery to our local communitics = when approved te scll

* Business to business relationships with local store owrers to sell wholessle

o Npte: Wewill not be accepting retail customerzinou- residence
s We Fave plans on renting a store fromt la Willows to sell retall In th= near future

The product s created by the 3 women in our hame. Sarah lames, Allison Hopkins 2ad Jaan
Tostares "Sevi”

The Descriptian of the sahie I5 25 Follows:

= This isa bopiral or ‘rub-on’ salve with multiple uses. The Sisters” orodurze are made with
high CBU strains of the cunnabis plant, strains develaped to have virtua Iy no THC  0.3%
or lowe s ay logelly veeeptable by the federal government, These produsts are nen
payehoactive, they wlll not gel a persan high?, and they will not sause g persan ;0 lail 3
drug test. The plant materizl we nse 1¢ make the praducls is considered han ' becsuse
of the nen-psychotropic nature of -he plant. LI5PS dellvery accepted to all 90 states anc
to all international focations. The sahve is a topiczl rub that w used extarnally. All the
Siskers prodacts are mare within a twos weel periaz during the menth, new mpan to tull
moun. All baxhys 3+ 3rd party tested for pobency. Lab tests availshle upen sequest
srd wrill accempony shizments, Kewep stored in = coel, dry place [net -cf-iperated)

The CBD salve cnataing the lollowing imgredienis; 72.2% sulid vaconul uil infused will hern bio
maze material, 1d.9% hgaswax, 3.8% liquid cocoaut ol hamp conoentrate, 1.5% Yitamin £ oll,
1.8% calendula oil, 1.4% lavender ml.

.01, Box 94

Willows, 184 FSUHKN

13301 56.-059
wwwsislesalza ainfo
senvgrinshopelermil.curn

Page 8 of 10 Sisters of the Valley Home Occupation UP
Planning Commission April 17,2019



ATTACHMENT 4

APN MAP

@

| I i |ze 1
B o ™ WEIN ATRIZ RO Y C
L R L T
..w.u Aﬁvﬁﬂ.\. Wl ] U B EM T MY Yy 1ak
Iheq 'uua g ja Junen
67 "Bd - ZD Y0og dapy sjossesty 15 o
SHVTYN By - 5 T Y 5 A
550D HRDA-w T4 Y S RN
4 3 ) 2
- TR A e - ——— o wh % ] “‘

Apaedoa)
P9ng

I (S |
&l g 2

-t Tt e e

e s =

T T S—

uag B

©

®

WOHLS HOH

5

R I

NOISNILXT — SLToMWAZ

Sisters of the Valley Home Occupation UP

Page 9 of 10

Planning Commission April 17,2019



Mg FNI Qo™
|._j wﬁ'}m;r"‘j
\

1,500 %H.

We use the
s Yehen e
L shept in
St rliinim)
Mooy a.wgi

et of Hue.
Uiy dostt,

UPPER STORY FLOOR PLAN

S —

A b,

I

7N

dagha.w

-
"""“ ?
! KL : il
I;’.‘: -
o -4
- b
e 4
Vit s
T ﬁ = il
Vi s
’ E ﬁ 1
= o 15

Page 10 of 10

ATTACHMENT 5

Sisters of the Valley Home Occupation UP

Planning Commission April 17,2019



